

State of Florida



Public Service Commission

CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER • 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0850

-M-E-M-O-R-A-N-D-U-M-

DATE: January 27, 2023
TO: Adam Teitzman, Commission Clerk
FROM: Susan Sapoznikoff, Office of the General Counsel *SS*
RE: Docket No. 20220171-WS

Please place the attached document into Docket No. 20210171-WS.

This is the confirmation from Department of State regarding the filing of the Adoption packet for Rules 25-30.110 and 25-30.420, F.A.C.

Please contact me at Susan.Sapoznikoff@psc.state.fl.us if you have any questions.

Thank you.

SS



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT *of* STATE

RON DESANTIS
Governor

CORD BYRD
Secretary of State

January 26, 2023

Susan Sapoznikoff
Senior Attorney
Office of the General Counsel
Florida Public Service Commission
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

Dear Susan Sapoznikoff:

Your adoption package for Rules 25-30.110, .420, F.A.C. was received, electronically, by the Florida Department of State, Administrative Code and Register at 10:43 a.m. on January 26, 2023. After review, it appears that the package meets statutory requirements and those of Rule 1-1.010, F.A.C. and is deemed filed for adoption at the time received, as indicated above. The effective date is February 15, 2023.

Sincerely,

Anya C. Owens
Program Administrator
Florida Administrative Code and Register
Florida Department of State
R.A. Gray Building
Tallahassee, FL 32399

ACO/mas

Swain, Margaret A.

From: Susan Sapoznikoff <SSapozni@psc.state.fl.us>
Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 10:43 AM
To: RuleAdoptions
Subject: Rule Certification Packet for Rules 25-30.110 and 25-30.420, F.A.C.
Attachments: 20220171- DOS Certification packet combined.pdf; 1 DOS T&S Rule 25-30.110.docx; 1 DOS T&S Rule 25-30.420.docx

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint.

Good morning:

I have attached the rule certification packet for Rules 25-30.110 and 24-30.420, F.A.C., with the PDF attachment of the entire packet, along with the Word version of the coded text of the rules. I await your email confirming receipt.

With best regards,

Suzie

Susan Sapoznikoff
Senior Attorney
Appeals, Rules & Ethics Section
Office of the General Counsel
Florida Public Service Commission
(850)-413-6630
Susan.Sapoznikoff@psc.state.fl.us



PLEASE NOTE: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state business are considered to be public records and will be made available to the public and the media upon request. Therefore, your e-mail message may be subject to public disclosure.

 Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail



Representative Tobin Rogers "Toby" Overdorf, Chair
Senator Blaise Ingoglia, Vice Chair
Senator Colleen Burton
Senator Erin Grall
Senator Rosalind Osgood
Senator Darryl Ervin Rouson
Representative Shane G. Abbott
Representative Kimberly Berfield
Representative Jervonte "Tae" Edmonds
Representative Alina Garcia
Representative Yvonne Hayes Hinson



KENNETH J. PLANTE
COORDINATOR
Room 680, Pepper Building
111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400
Telephone (850) 488-9110
Fax (850) 922-6934
www.japc.state.fl.us
japc@leg.state.fl.us

THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE
JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEDURES COMMITTEE

CERTIFICATION

Department: Public Service Commission
Agency:
Rule No(s): 25-30.110, .420
File Control No: 189256

As required by subparagraph 120.54(3)(e)4 F.S., the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee hereby certifies that:

- There were no material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the committee regarding the above listed rule; or
The adopting agency has responded in writing to all material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the committee regarding the above listed rules; or
The adopting agency has not responded in writing to all material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the Committee regarding the above listed rules.

Certification Date: 1/23/2023

This certification expires after: 1/30/2023

Certifying Attorney: Jamie Jackson

NOTE:

- The above certified rules include materials incorporated by reference.
The above certified rules do not include materials incorporated by reference.

COMMISSIONERS:
ANDREW GILES FAY, CHAIRMAN
ART GRAHAM
GARY F. CLARK
MIKE LA ROSA
GABRIELLA PASSIDOMO

STATE OF FLORIDA



OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
KEITH C. HETRICK
GENERAL COUNSEL
(850) 413-6199

Public Service Commission

January 26, 2023

Ms. Anya C. Owens
Florida Department of State
Administrative Code and Register Section
Room 701, the Capitol
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250
RuleAdoptions@DOS.MyFlorida.com

VIA E-MAIL

Re: Rule Certification Packet for Rules 25-30.110 and 25-30.420, F.A.C.

Dear Ms. Owens:

Enclosed for filing is a complete rule certification packet for Rules 25-30.110 and 25-30.420, F.A.C., consisting of:

- (1) One copy of the coded text of the rules in Word version
- (2) Copies of the e-mail approval confirmations with the certification forms required by Rule 1-1.013, F.A.C., for the materials incorporated by reference that were filed electronically
- (3) One copy of the signed rule certification form
- (4) One copy of the signed designation of minor violation rule certification form required by Rule 1-1.010, F.A.C.
- (5) One copy of the coded text of the rule, including the legal citations and history notes;
- (6) One copy of the summary of the rule
- (7) One copy of the detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the rule, and
- (8) One copy of the summary of the hearings held on the rule

Please let me know if you have any questions. I am the contact for this rule. I may be reached at the Florida Public Service Commission, Office of General Counsel, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250. My telephone number is (850) 413-6630. My email address is Susan.Sapoznikoff@psc.state.fl.us.

Sincerely,

/s/ Susan Sapoznikoff

Susan Sapoznikoff
Senior Attorney

Enclosures

cc: Office of the Commission Clerk (**Docket No. 20220171-WS**)

CERTIFICATION OF FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify:

(1) That all statutory rulemaking requirements of Chapter 120, F.S., and all rulemaking requirements of the Department of State have been complied with; and

(2) That there is no administrative determination under Section 120.56(2), F.S., pending on any rule covered by this certification; and

(3) All rules covered by this certification are filed within the prescribed time limitations of Section 120.54(3)(e), F.S. They are filed not less than 28 days after the notice required by Section 120.54(3)(a), F.S.; and

(a) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice; or

(b) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not more than 60 days after the administrative law judge files the final order with the clerk or until 60 days after subsequent judicial review is complete; or

(c) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 21 days nor more than 45 days from the date of publication of the notice of change; or

(d) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but not less than 14 nor more than 45 days after the adjournment of the final public hearing on the rule; or

(e) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date of receipt of all material authorized to be submitted at the hearing; or

(f) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after the date the transcript was received by this agency; or

(g) Are filed not more than 90 days after the notice, not including days the adoption of the rule was postponed following notification from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee that an objection to the rule was being considered; or

(h) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a good faith written proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative to a proposed rule is submitted which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the law being implemented; or

(i) Are filed more than 90 days after the notice, but within 21 days after a regulatory alternative is offered by the ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor.

The rules are hereby adopted by the undersigned agency by and upon their filing with the Department of State.

Rule Nos.:

25-30.110	
25-30.420	

Under the provision of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the rules take effect 20 days from the date filed with the Department of State or a later date as set out below:

Effective Date: _____

(month) (day) (year)



Signature, Person Authorized to Certify Rules

Commission Clerk

Title

9
Number of Pages Certified

CERTIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT OF STATE
DESIGNATION OF RULE THE VIOLATION OF WHICH IS A MINOR VIOLATION

Pursuant to Section 120.695(2)(c)3, Florida Statutes, I certify as agency head, as defined by Section 20.05(1)(b), Florida Statutes, that:

All rules covered by this certification are not rules the violation of which would be minor violation pursuant to Section 120.695, F.S.

The following parts of the rules covered by this certification have been designated as rules the violation of which would be a minor violation pursuant to Section 120.695, F.S.:

Rule No.

25-30.110

Rules covered by this certification:

Rule Nos.

25-30.110

25-30.420



Signature of Agency Head

Chairman, Florida Public Service Commission

Title

SUMMARY OF THE RULES

Rule 25-30.110 sets forth the requirements and process for water and wastewater utilities to file their annual reports.

Rule 25-30.420 sets for the process to deliver the Proposed Agency Action order establishing the price index for the year and the Price Index Application to the water and wastewater utilities under the Commission's jurisdiction.

WRITTEN STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES JUSTIFYING THE RULES

Rules 25-30.110 and 25-30.420, F.A.C., and forms incorporated by reference in those rules, are being amended to update and clarify the rule language. The amendments provide that the Commission will email the price index documents and annual report forms to the water and wastewater utilities under its jurisdiction, allow the utilities to file completed annual reports by email, update the process to calculate interest on penalties for late filed Annual Reports to align it with current practice, and add a customer notice to the Commission form that is contained in Rule 25-30.420, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF ANY HEARINGS HELD ON THE RULES

No timely request for a hearing was received by the agency, and no hearing was held.

25-30.110 Records and Reports; Annual Reports.

(1) Records.

(a) Each utility ~~must shall~~ preserve its records in accordance with the “Regulations to Govern the Preservation of Records of Electric, Gas and Water Utilities” as issued by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners ~~Commissions~~, as revised ~~October 2007~~ ~~May 1985~~, which is incorporated by reference into this rule. “Regulations to Govern the Preservation of Records of Electric, Gas and Water Utilities” is copyrighted and may be inspected and examined at no cost at the Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850. A copy may be obtained from the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, 1101 Vermont Avenue, N.W., Suite 200, Washington, D.C. 20005.

1. Those utilities that choose to convert documents from their original media form ~~must shall~~ retain the original source documents as required by ~~subsection (1)(a) of this rule paragraph 25-30.110(1)(a), F.A.C.,~~ for a minimum of three years, or for any lesser period of time specified for that type of record in the “Regulations to Govern the Preservation of Records of Electric, Gas and Water Utilities,” after the date the document was created or received by the utility. This paragraph does not require the utility to create paper copies of documents where the utility would not otherwise do so in the ordinary course of its business. ~~The Commission may waive the requirement that documents be retained in their original form.~~ Upon a showing by a utility that it employs a storage and retrieval system that consistently produces clear, readable copies that are substantially equivalent to the originals, and clearly reproduces handwritten notations on documents, the utility does not have to meet the requirement to retain documents in their original form.

2. The utility ~~must shall~~ maintain written procedures governing the conversion of source documents to a storage and retrieval system, which procedures ensure the authenticity of documents and the completeness of records. Records maintained in the storage and retrieval system must be easy to search and easy to read.

(b) Unless otherwise authorized by the Commission, each utility ~~must shall~~ maintain its records at the office or offices of the utility within this state and ~~must shall~~ keep those records open for inspection during business hours by Commission staff.

(c) Any utility that keeps its records outside the state ~~must shall~~ reimburse the Commission for the reasonable travel expense incurred by each Commission representative during any review of the out-of-state records of the utility or its affiliates. Reasonable travel expenses are those travel expenses that are equivalent to travel expenses

paid by the Commission in the ordinary course of its business.

1. The utility ~~must shall~~ remit reimbursement for out-of-state travel expenses within 30 days from the date the Commission mails the invoice.

2. The reimbursement requirement in paragraph (1)(c) ~~is not applicable for the following shall be waived:~~

a. ~~A For any~~ utility that makes its out-of-state records available at the utility's office located in Florida or at another mutually agreed upon location in Florida within 10 working days from the Commission's initial request. If 10 working days is not reasonable because of the complexity and nature of the issues involved or the volume and type of material requested, the Commission ~~will may~~ establish a different time frame for the utility to bring records into the state. For individual data requests made during an audit, the response time frame established in Rule 25-30.145, F.A.C., ~~will shall~~ control; or

b. ~~A For a~~ utility whose records are located within 50 miles of the Florida state line.

(2) In General. Each utility ~~must shall~~ furnish to the Commission ~~at such time and in such forms as the Commission may require~~, the results of any required tests and summaries of any required records. The utility ~~must shall~~ also furnish the Commission with any information concerning the utility's facilities or operation that the Commission ~~may requests and requires~~ for determining rates or judging the practices of the utility. All such data, unless otherwise specified, ~~must shall~~ be consistent with and reconcilable with the utility's annual report to the Commission.

(3) Annual Reports: Filing Extensions. Each utility ~~must shall~~ file with the Commission annual reports on ~~the applicable form forms in subsection (4) of this rule prescribed by the Commission~~. The obligation to file an annual report for any year ~~will shall~~ apply to any utility which is subject to this Commission's jurisdiction as of December 31 of that year, whether or not the utility has actually applied for or been issued a certificate.

(a) The Commission ~~will shall~~, by January 15 of each year, ~~email a send one~~ blank copy of the appropriate annual report form to each utility company. ~~A utility may request a hard copy of the forms in subsection (4) of this rule from the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance~~. The failure of a utility to receive a report form ~~will shall~~ not excuse the utility from its obligation to timely file the annual report. ~~An original and two copies of the annual reports must shall be filed with the Commission, either by mail or by email, on or before March 31 for the preceding year ending December 31. Annual reports filed by email must be sent to AnnualReport@psc.state.fl.us. Annual reports are considered filed on the day they are postmarked, or received and~~

~~logged in by~~ Annual reports filed by mail must be sent to the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance in Tallahassee.

(b) ~~Annual An reports report are is considered on filed file if they are it is~~ properly addressed and emailed or mailed with sufficient postage, and postmarked, by no later than the due date. ~~For If an annual reports report is sent by registered mail, the date of the registration is the postmark date. The registration is evidence that the annual report was delivered. For If an annual reports report is sent by certified mail and the receipt is postmarked by a postal employee, the date on the receipt is the postmark date. The postmark postmarked certified mail receipt is evidence that the an annual report return was delivered. However, if a utility's annual report is not actually received by the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance in Tallahassee, that utility must resend it upon request, despite any prior presumption of delivery.~~

(c) A utility may file a written request for an extension of time to file its annual report with the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance no later than March 31. One extension of 30 days will be automatically granted upon request. A request for a longer extension must be accompanied by a statement of good cause, such as financial hardship, severe illness, or significant weather events such as hurricanes, but good cause does not include reasons such as management oversight or vacation time, and must shall specify the date by which the report will be filed.

(4) Annual Reports; Contents. The appropriate annual report form required from each utility will shall be determined by using the same three classes of utilities used by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners for publishing its system of accounts: Class A (those having annual water or wastewater operating revenues of \$1,000,000 or more); Class B (those having annual water or wastewater revenues of \$200,000 or more, but less than \$1,000,000); Class C (those having annual water or wastewater revenues of less than \$200,000). The class to which a utility belongs will shall be determined by using the higher of the average of its annual water or wastewater operating revenues for each of the last three preceding years.

(a) Class A and B utilities must shall file the annual report on Commission Form PSC-1032 (5/22), PSC/AFD-3-W (12/99) entitled "Class A or B Water and/or Wastewater Utilities (Gross Revenues of \$200,000 and more)"; which is incorporated by reference into this rule and may be obtained from <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15172>.

(b) Class C utilities must shall file the annual report on Commission Form PSC 1033 (5/22) PSC/AFD-6-W (12/99), entitled "Class C Water and/or Wastewater Utilities (Gross Revenues of less than \$200,000 each)"; which is

~~is~~ incorporated by reference into this rule and may be obtained from
<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15174>.

(c) The foregoing forms can be obtained from the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance.

(5) ~~Certification of Annual Reports~~. As part of the annual report, each utility ~~must shall~~ verify certify the following in writing by the utility's chief executive officer and chief financial officer:

(a) Whether the utility is in substantial compliance with the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by Rule 25-30.115, F.A.C.;

(b) Whether the utility is in substantial compliance with all applicable rules and orders of the Florida Public Service Commission;

(c) Whether there have been any written communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the financial statements;

(d) Whether the financial statements and related schedules fairly present the financial condition and results of operations for the period presented and whether other information and statements presented as to the business affairs of the respondent are true, correct, and complete for the period which they represent.

~~(6) Annual Reports, Penalty for Noncompliance~~. A penalty shall be assessed against any utility that fails to file an annual report or an extension in the following manner:

~~(a) Failure to file an annual report or an extension on or before March 31;~~

~~(b) Failure to file a complete annual report;~~

~~(c) Failure to file an original and two copies of the annual report.~~

~~Any utility that fails to comply with this rule shall be subject to the penalties imposed herein unless the utility demonstrates good cause for the noncompliance. The Commission may, in its discretion, impose penalties for noncompliance that are greater or lesser than provided herein; such as in cases involving a flagrant disregard for the requirements of this rule or repeated violations of this rule. No final determination of noncompliance or assessment of penalty shall be made by the Commission except after notice and an opportunity to be heard, as provided by applicable law.~~

~~(d) Any utility which fails to pay a penalty within 30 days after its assessment by the Commission shall be subject to interest applied to the penalty up to and including the date of payment of the penalty. Such interest shall be compounded monthly, based on the 30 day commercial paper rate for high grade, unsecured notes sold through~~

~~dealers by major corporations in multiples of \$1,000 as regularly published in the Wall Street Journal.~~

~~(6)(7)~~ Delinquent Reports.

(a) Any utility that fails to file its annual report or extension on or before March 31, or within the time specified by any extension approved in writing by the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance, ~~will shall~~ be subject to a penalty. The penalty ~~will shall~~ be based on the number of calendar days elapsed from March 31, or from an approved extended filing date, until the date of filing. The date of filing ~~will shall~~ be included in the days elapsed.

(b) The penalty for delinquent reports ~~will shall~~ accrue based on the utility's classification established under subsection (4) of this rule, in the following manner for each day the report is delinquent:

1. \$25.00 per day for Class A utilities;
2. \$13.50 per day for Class B utilities; and
3. \$3.00 per day for Class C utilities.

(c) If a utility does not timely file its annual report, in addition to the penalty determined by subsection (6)(b) of this rule, interest on the penalty will also be assessed from the date the annual report was due, up to and including the date the penalty is paid. Such interest is based on the AA non-financial 30-day commercial paper rate published by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System on its website. Interest will be compounded monthly.

~~(7)(8)~~ Incomplete Reports.

(a) The Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance ~~will shall~~ provide written notification to a utility if its report does not contain information required by subsection (4) of this rule. The utility ~~must shall~~ file the missing information no later than 30 days after the date on the face of the notification. If the utility fails to file the information within that period, the report will be deemed delinquent and the utility ~~will shall~~ be subject to a penalty as provided under paragraphs ~~(6)(7)~~(a) and (b) of this rule, except that the penalty ~~will shall~~ be based on the number of days elapsed from the date the information is due to the date it is actually filed. The date of filing ~~will shall~~ be included in the elapsed days.

(b) A report is incomplete if any of the schedules required by the following forms of this rule are not completed:

1. Form PSC 1032 (5/22) ~~PSC/AFD 3-W (Rev. 12/99)~~ for Class A and B utilities;
2. Form PSC 1033 (5/22) ~~PSC/AFD 6-W (Rev. 12/99)~~ for Class C utilities.

(c) An incomplete report will remain incomplete until the missing information is filed with the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance on the appropriate Commission form.

~~(8)~~⁽⁹⁾ Incorrect Filing. If a utility files an incorrect annual report it will ~~shall~~ be considered delinquent and subject to a penalty on the same basis as a utility that fails to timely file an annual report. The classification determining the applicable penalty, as prescribed by paragraphs ~~(6)~~⁽⁷⁾(a) and (b) of this rule, will ~~shall~~ be determined by the latest annual revenue figures available for the utility. The failure of a utility to receive a report form for the correct class of utility will ~~shall~~ not excuse the utility from its obligation to timely file the annual report for the correct class of utility.

~~(10) Insufficient Copies. A utility that fails to file one original and two copies of its annual report shall be subject to a penalty of one dollar per page per missing copy. The Commission will provide the utility with written notice that insufficient copies were received. A penalty may be avoided if, within 20 days after the date of the notice, the utility files the missing copies or requests that the Commission copy its report for it and remits the appropriate fee for the copying.~~

~~(11) Other Penalties. The penalties that may be assessed against a utility for failure to file an annual report in compliance with the foregoing shall be separate and distinct from penalties that may be imposed for other violations of the requirements of the Commission.~~

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 367.121 FS. Law Implemented 367.121~~(1)~~(e), ~~(g)~~, ~~(i)~~, ~~(k)~~, 367.156(1), 367.161 FS. History—New 9-12-74, Amended 1-18-83, 2-25-85, 10-27-85, Formerly 25-10.25, 25-10.025, Amended 11-10-86, 12-22-86, 3-11-91, 11-13-95, 5-1-96, 12-14-99, _____.

25-30.420 Establishment of Price Index, Adjustment of Rates; Requirement of Bond; Filings After Adjustment; Notice to Customers.

(1) On or before March 31 of each year, the Commission ~~will shall~~ establish a price increase or decrease index as required by Section 367.081(4)(a), F.S. The ~~Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance Office of Commission Clerk~~ ~~will shall email mail~~ each regulated water and wastewater utility a copy of the proposed agency action order establishing the index for the year and a copy of Form PSC 1022 (~~5/22 9/18~~), entitled "Price Index Application," which is incorporated into this rule by reference and may be obtained from <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15175> ~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-11101~~ and the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance. Utilities may request a hard copy of the index application from the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance. Applications for the newly established price index will be accepted from April 1 of the year the index is established through March 31 of the following year.

(a) The index ~~will shall~~ be applied to all operation and maintenance expenses, except for amortization of rate case expense, costs subject to pass-through adjustments pursuant to Section 367.081(4)(b), F.S., and adjustments or disallowances made in a utility's most recent rate proceeding.

(b) In establishing the price index, the Commission will consider cost statistics compiled by government agencies or bodies, cost data supplied by utility companies or other interested parties, and applicable wage and price guidelines.

(2) Any utility seeking to increase or decrease its rates based upon the application of the index established pursuant to subsection (1) and as authorized by Section 367.081(4)(a), F.S., ~~must shall~~ file a notice of intention and the materials listed in paragraphs (a) through (i) below with the Commission's Division of Accounting and Finance either by mail at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 or by email at Applications@psc.state.fl.us at least 60 days prior to the effective date of the increase or decrease. Form PSC 1022 (~~5/22 9/18~~) is an example application that may be completed by the applicant to comply with this subsection. The adjustment in rates ~~will shall~~ take effect on the date specified in the notice of intention unless the Commission finds that the notice of intention or accompanying materials do not comply with Section 367.081(4), F.S. or this rule. The notice ~~must shall~~ be accompanied by:

(a) Revised tariff sheets;

(b) A computation schedule showing the increase or decrease in annual revenue that will result when the index is applied;

(c) The affirmation required by Section 367.081(4)(c), F.S.;

(d) A copy of the notice to customers required by subsection (6);

(e) The rate of return on equity that the utility is affirming it will not exceed pursuant to Section 367.081(4)(c), F.S.;

(f) An annualized revenue figure for the test year used in the index calculation reflecting the rate change, along with an explanation of the calculation, if there has been any change in the utility's rates during or subsequent to the test year;

(g) The utility's Department of Environmental Protection Public Water System identification number and Wastewater Treatment Plant Operating Permit number;

(h) A statement that the utility does not have any active written complaints, corrective orders, consent orders, or outstanding citations with the Department of Environmental Protection or the County Health Department(s) or that the utility does have active written complaints, corrective orders, consent orders, or outstanding citations with the Department of Environmental Protection or the County Health Department(s);

(i) A copy of any active written complaints, corrective orders, consent orders, or outstanding citations with the Department of Environmental Protection or the County Health Department(s).

(3) If the Commission, upon its own motion, implements an increase or decrease in the rates of a utility based upon the application of the index established pursuant to subsection (1) and as authorized by Section 367.081(4)(a), F.S., the Commission will require a utility to file the information required in subsection (2).

(4) Upon a finding of good cause, the Commission will ~~shall~~ require that a rate increase pursuant to Section 367.081(4)(a), F.S., be implemented under a bond or corporate undertaking in the same manner as interim rates. For purposes of this subsection, "good cause" will ~~shall~~ include:

(a) Inadequate service by the utility;

(b) Inadequate record-keeping by the utility such that the Commission is unable to determine whether the utility is entitled to implement the rate increase or decrease under this rule.

(5) Prior to the time a customer begins consumption at the rates established by application of the index, the utility shall notify each customer of the increase or decrease authorized and explain the reasons therefore.

(6) ~~A No utility is prohibited shall from filing file~~ a notice of intention pursuant to this rule unless the utility has filed with the Commission an annual report as required by subsection 25-30.110(3), F.A.C., for the test year specified in the order establishing the index for the year.

(7) ~~A No utility is prohibited shall from implementing implement~~ a rate increase pursuant to this rule within one year of the official date that it filed a rate proceeding, unless the rate proceeding has been completed or terminated.

Rulemaking Authority 350.127(2), 367.081(4)(a), 367.121(1)(c), (f) FS. Law Implemented 367.081(4), 367.121(1)(c), (g) FS. History—New 4-5-81, Amended 9-16-82, Formerly 25-10.185, Amended 11-10-86, 6-5-91, 4-18-99, 12-11-03, 9-3-19, _____.

CERTIFICATION OF MATERIALS INCORPORATED

BY REFERENCE IN RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify pursuant to Rule 1-1.013, Florida Administrative Code, that materials incorporated by reference in Rules 25-30.110 and 25-30.420, F.A.C. have been:


(1) Filed through the Department of State's e-rulemaking website at www.flrules.org.

(2) That because there would be a violation of federal copyright laws if the submitting agency filed the incorporated materials as described in option (1) above, a true and complete copy of the incorporated materials has been provided to the Department of State as outlined in paragraph 1-1.013(5)(c), F.A.C. Copies of the incorporated materials below may be obtained at the agency by [include address(es)/location(s)].

List form numbers and form titles, or title of documents below:

Form PSC 1032 (5/22)
Form PSC 1033 (5/22)
Form PSC 1022 (5/22)

Under the provisions of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the attached materials take effect 20 days from the date filed with the Department of State, or a later date as specified in the rule.



Signature, Person Authorized to Certify Rules
Clerk

Title

From: [Carolyn Craig](#)
To: [Susan Sapoznikoff](#)
Subject: FW: 25-30.420 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
Date: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 1:53:49 PM

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us
Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 1:53:37 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)
To: Carolyn Craig
Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us
Subject: 25-30.420 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved

Dear ccraig:

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register Staff.

The approved material is available in the [Review/Modify Agency Reference Material](#) list (Agency Main Menu page).

Rule Number: 25-30.420

Reference Number: Ref-15175; Reference Name: FPSC Price Index Application

Click [here](#) to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State

From: [Carolyn Craig](#)
To: [Susan Sapoznikoff](#)
Subject: FW: 25-30.110 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
Date: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 1:53:56 PM

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us
Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 1:53:37 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)
To: Carolyn Craig
Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us
Subject: 25-30.110 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved

Dear ccraig:

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register Staff.

The approved material is available in the [Review/Modify Agency Reference Material](#) list (Agency Main Menu page).

Rule Number: 25-30.110

Reference Number: Ref-15172; Reference Name: Class "A" or "B" Water and/or Wastewater Utilities-Annual Report

Click [here](#) to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State

From: [Carolyn Craig](#)
To: [Susan Sapoznikoff](#)
Subject: FW: 25-30.110 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
Date: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 1:53:50 PM

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us
Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 1:53:37 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)
To: Carolyn Craig
Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us
Subject: 25-30.110 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved

Dear ccraig:

The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the Administrative Code and Register Staff.

The approved material is available in the [Review/Modify Agency Reference Material](#) list (Agency Main Menu page).

Rule Number: 25-30.110

Reference Number: Ref-15174; Reference Name: Class "C" Water and/or Wastewater Utilities-Annual Report

Click [here](#) to log in.

Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State

CERTIFICATION OF MATERIALS INCORPORATED

BY REFERENCE IN RULES FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify pursuant to Rule 1-1.013, Florida Administrative Code, that materials incorporated by reference in Rule 25-30.110, F.A.C., have been:


(1) Filed through the Department of State's e-rulemaking website at www.flrules.org.

(2) That because there would be a violation of federal copyright laws if the submitting agency filed the incorporated materials as described in option (1) above, a true and complete copy of the incorporated materials has been provided to the Department of State as outlined in paragraph 1-1.013(5)(c), F.A.C. Copies of the incorporated materials below may be inspected and examined at no cost at the Florida Public Service Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850. A copy may be obtained from the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, 1101 Vermont Avenue, N.W., Suite 200, Washington, D.C. 20005.

List form number(s) and form title(s), or title of document(s) below:

“Regulations to Govern the Preservation of Records of Electric, Gas and Water Utilities” as issued by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, as revised October 2007.

Under the provisions of Section 120.54(3)(e)6., F.S., the attached materials take effect 20 days from the date filed with the Department of State, or a later date as specified in the rule.



Signature, Person Authorized to Certify Rules
Clerk

Title